The Mysterious 100+ Year History 
of the Flagpole in Bush Plaza 

The flagpole in Bush Plaza. It’s a true fixture of our downtown landscape. It has proudly displayed our flag for over 100 years, served to greet countless people entering Oakland and served to display the original Indian sign to inform all of our Indian heritage. Writing about our flagpole is important because it is part of all of us and its history deserves to be told.

Everyone is aware of it and everyone has seen it thousands of times. But has anyone ever asked themselves how, why and when it got there? But before we start, this writer needs to provide a caveat: There is absolutely no specific historic documentation about the development and installation of the flagpole. What follows here is based solely upon dated historic photographs combined with known facts of the day. Call it ‘connecting the historical dots’ aka historical speculation.

Ok, with that said, let’s begin.

The history of Oakland’s flagpole begins almost with the origins of Oakland, the advent of the railroad coming to town and David C. Bush, Sr. History records that the railroad came to Oakland in 1869 through the work and influence of Mr. Bush. History also records that our railroad station was built in 1871. But little noted is the fact that the railroad was in fact built traversing Mr. Bush’s farm and Mr. Bush sold the right of way to the railroad but uniquely kept ownership of the land upon which the railroad station was built. And in 1887 Mr. Bush built on his property his general store which ultimately became the Wigwam, the icon of a generation. The combination of the railroad, the railroad train station and his general store literally gave rise to the development of downtown Oakland in the 19th Century and continues to be so as we know it today.

In fact he owned the property to the left and right of his store to the railroad tracks and the property on the other side of the tracks as well encompassing his farmhouse (now Walgreens) and the current West Oakland Avenue which was originally his private farm road. 

It appears that Mr. Bush was quite patriotic. While the earliest photographs of his general store c1887 and the train station do not show the presence of a flagpole, a photograph dated 1907 clearly does. And very interestingly, the original Oakland flagpole was placed literally in front of his store. Today that location would be in the center of Ramapo Valley Road.

That post card date of 1907 is only 5 years after Oakland became an independent borough after separating from Franklin Township. While it’s all too facile to speculate that Mr. Bush erected his flagpole in celebration of Oakland becoming an independent town, there is no historical trace documentation suggesting his motives. But I wanna believe so.

So, we now know that Mr. Bush erected a flagpole on his property in front of his store in or before 1907. That’s a fact. But our beloved flagpole is now in the middle of Bush Plaza. Why and when did this occur? Again, there is no historical documentation about this other than early Oakland photographs used for dated location comparison.

Those early photographs depict the current location of our flagpole is dated from the early 1920s or about 13 years after the 1907 photo. There are two factors to keep in mind here. First is that Mr. Bush still owns all his property from his store to the railroad tracks and beyond. And the second is that Oakland as a town and its business district has begun to emerge and is emanating from Mr. Bush’s general store.

Now we have four facts: Mr. Bush was the first to erect a flagpole in Oakland in or before 1907, his flagpole was moved from in front of his store to its current location in the early 1920s or before, Mr. Bush owned the property where the flagpole is currently situated in front of the railroad station and the flagpole was moved at a time when downtown Oakland had distinctly emerged. So, let’s attempt to connect these historical dots. It’s called historical speculation.

Speculation #1
One of the primary reasons why Oakland seceded from Franklin Township was because Franklin Township refused to pave our roads (RVR) in favor of catering to the roads of Ridgewood. We received no benefit from our taxes. So, after we departed, one mission was to define and pave RVR. It just might be that Mr. Bush’s flagpole was in the way and it either had to be moved or eliminated. It was moved.

Speculation #2
In 1871 there were effectively two buildings in what was to become downtown Oakland: The Bush General Store and the railroad station. That was it. Between 1871 and 1907, a span of a mere 36 years, downtown Oakland fully emerged with beautiful Victorian buildings all to the credit and vision of Mr. Bush. He wouldn’t be human if he wasn’t justly proud of what his vision and energy wrought. It just might be that his moving of the flagpole to its current location in the open space between his store and the railroad station was to bring a permanent symbol of pride in Oakland for all to forever see.

In truth we will never factually know the complete story of Oakland’s flagpole as it is lost to history. And its history is not part of borough records as it was accomplished on private property at the time. But we do know that for well over 100 years it has celebrated our pride in our nation and our pride of Oakland. And our flag upon it has hung both in celebration and at at half mast during times of sadness and distress. Aside from dated photographic documentation, there is one thing that we can be absolutely certain of. Specifically, it is our undying appreciation of Mr. Bush to erect and then move his flagpole to its current location. For that, sir, we salute you.


 
